2 From the Executive Director

3 Events Calendar

4 Regional History
   William H. Williams, Pioneer Keeper

5 West Point Light

6 Feature Article
   Archaeological Survey

8 Object of the Quarter
   Laertes Life Preserver

9 Volunteer Award Program
   Thank You & Wish List

10 Education News
   Crossword Puzzle
We are pleased to announce that the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse received the fourth and final installment of the Cycle 18 General Operating Support Grant awarded for the 2006-2007 fiscal year. The Association would like to convey its sincere thanks to the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, for their continued support of the Light Station through the Historic Museums Grants-in-Aid Program. This state funded program provided General Operating Support funds to historic and cultural sites throughout Florida.

We would also like to thank our many advocates in both the public and private sector for writing letters of support which were used in the Cycle 18 and pending Cycle 19 grant applications. With your assistance we successfully defended our application for continued general operating support and were approved for operational support funding for the upcoming 2007-2008 fiscal year.

We would like to express our gratitude to all the volunteers who have dedicated so much of their personal time to the continued success of the Light Station’s educational programming and tours. The Association recently hosted a wonderful volunteer appreciation dinner at the Palmetto Club to recognize the invaluable contributions of these volunteers to the Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station. Details related to this special event and other important volunteer activities can be found in the Volunteer and Education article featured in this newsletter.

The Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station is happy to announce that the new World War II at the Light Station exhibit was successfully unveiled on April 20th. This wonderful addition to the museum was designed by Curator Ellen Henry and constructed by our maintenance staff. Despite inclement weather, the grand opening was a great success and included our first ham radio broadcast which could not have occurred without the assistance of volunteers Allen Bestwick, George Kangas, Paul Milward, and Gene Greneker. We invite all of our readers to come visit this new and exciting addition to the Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station and read more about this interesting period in the Light Station’s history online at www.ponceinlet.org.

The Association is proud to announce that several new educational outreach projects will be unveiled in the months to come. Curator Ellen Henry has worked long hours these past months developing our new Filibustering to Cuba traveling exhibit. Featuring text panels, artifacts, and accompanying teacher resources pertaining to the Spanish American War, Stephen Crane, Yellow Journalism, and American filibustering expeditions to Cuba in the late 1800s. This new exhibit will be made available to local educational facilities and schools.

The second outreach project scheduled for unveiling this fall was developed by Historian Mike Bennett with assistance from Volusia County educational specialists. Consisting of a reproduction U.S.L.H.E. library box containing lighthouse themed books, educational materials, videos, DVDs, and artwork, the new travelling library will be made available to Volusia County schools free of charge.

We hope everyone enjoys our newly expanded quarterly newsletter. We welcome your feedback and suggestions regarding the new format and newsletter content. Those wishing to contact us may do so by emailing Historian/Project Manager Mike Bennett at mbennett@ponceinlet.org. We appreciate your continued support and hope to see you all again at the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse in the near future.

Sincerely,

Ann Caneer
Executive Director

THE PONCE DE LEON INLET LIGHTHOUSE PRESERVATION ASSOCIATION IS DEDICATED TO THE PRESERVATION AND DISSEMINATION OF THE MARITIME AND SOCIAL HISTORY OF THE PONCE DE LEON INLET LIGHT STATION.

2006 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Wilda Hampton
President

Tami Lewis
Vice President

Bill Merrell
2nd Vice President

Bob Riggio
Treasurer

Tony Girolami
Secretary

Cheryl Cunningham
Earl Davis

Gladys Davis
Tarra Lamb

Barbara LaVelle
Budd Solano

ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Ginger Bayer

Maddy Elbers

Edson Graham

Ellen Pagliarulo

Judy Huggins

The Light Station is published quarterly by the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse Preservation Association, Inc.

Subscription is a benefit of membership in the Association. The Light Station welcomes letters and comments from our readers.

MEMBER:

AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF MUSEUMS
AMERICAN ASSOC. FOR STATE AND LOCAL HISTORY
FLORIDA ASSOCIATION OF MUSEUMS
FLORIDA LIGHTHOUSE ASSOCIATION
FLORIDA TRUST FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION
NATIONAL TRUST FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION
U.S. LIGHTHOUSE SOCIETY
PORT ORANGE & SOUTH DAYTONA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Upcoming Meetings:

July 11, 2007  Budget, Finance, and Endowment Fund Committee Meeting

July 16, 2007  Board of Trustees Meeting and Quarterly Membership Meeting

Aug. 20, 2007  Board of Trustees Meeting

Sept. 17, 2007  Board of Trustees Meeting

All meetings are held in the Gift Shop Conference Room
Corporate Lampists
Boondocks Restaurant
Wilbur by the Sea, FL
Racing's North Turn
Ponce Inlet, FL
Inlet Harbor Restaurant
Ponce Inlet, FL
Florida Power and Light
Daytona Beach, FL
Caring Cleaners
Daytona Beach, FL
Raymond James & Associates Inc.
Ponce Inlet, FL
Volusia Properties
Daytona Beach, FL
Brochure Displays, Inc
Daytona Beach, FL
Wickersham & Bowers
Daytona Beach, FL

Principal Keepers
Casa Grande – L. Keith
Daytona Beach Shores, FL
Frederick & Barbara
Treadway
Ponce Inlet, FL

1st Assistant Keepers
Ellen Barton
Ponce Inlet, FL
Anthony Girolami
Ponce Inlet, FL
Barbara & Robert LaVelle
Ponce Inlet, FL
Patrick & Debbie Pawling
Hamilton, OH
Alan & Mary Ann Redinger
Ponce Inlet, FL

2nd Assistant Keepers
Harvey & Connie Bach
Ponce Inlet, FL
Donald & Catherine Bauerle
Ponce Inlet, FL
Bill & Virginia Bayer
Ponce Inlet, FL
Charles & Michelle Cameron
Daytona Beach, FL
Kelly & Taylor Crumley
Long Grove, IL
Joe & Judy DiCarlo
Fort Orange, FL
Michael, Lauren, & Lisa Elsberry
Ponce Inlet, FL

2nd Assistant Keepers, cont’d.
Dennis & Zackary Engel
 Owatonna, MN
 Dr. C.W. & Gail C. Fain
 Holley Hill, FL
 Janice, Dana, & Alain Fredey
 Oviedo, FL
 Art & Barbara Giles
 Daytona Beach, FL
 James & Martha Goodlet
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Cliff & Kim Greene
 Mineo, MI
 Laurel Grotzinger
 Kalamazoo, MI
 Mark & Karen Hudson
 Mims, FL
 Inlet Harbor Realty
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Down the Hatch, Inc.
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Dr. Herbert & Ruth Kerman
 Daytona Beach, FL
 John L. & Patricia Ann La Belle
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Lester & Tami Lewis
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Donna Lough
 Deep, NY
 Ward & Terry Mead
 Ormond Beach, FL
 Daytona Beach News Journal
 Daytona Beach, FL
 Jefferson & Pamela Ray
 Alttoona, FL
 Philip A. Rhodes
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Ernest C. & Margaret Rieth
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Robert, Margie, Robert, & Tony Riggio
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Diane Schanamay
 Ponce Inlet, FL
 Frederic Schaub
 Winter Park, FL
 Neil & Jackie Sorensen
 Daytona Beach Shores, FL
 Robert & Mary Ruth Trump
 Plymouth, IN
 Lt. Col. William & Sandra Wester
 Ponce Inlet, FL

Lighthouse Events July–September 2007

July 4 (Wed)
Independence Day at the Lighthouse
10:00 AM – 3:00 PM
Participate in family activities and listen to live entertainment. Included with regular admission, no advance reservations required.

July 5 (Thurs)
Racing Fans Family Day
10:00 AM – 4:00 PM
Participate in family activities, take a tour, enjoy new lighthouse exhibits, participate in turn of the century kid’s activities, and listen to live entertainment. Included with regular admission, no advance reservations required.

July 14, 21 & 28 (Sat)
Canaveral Lens Demonstration
Special Activities from 1:00 P.M. – 2:00 P.M.
Join our old-time lighthouse keepers as they talk about the history of the Cape Canaveral Lighthouse and demonstrate their maintenance duties on the 1st Order Fresnel Lens. Included with regular admission, no advance reservations required.

Aug 7 (Tues)
National Lighthouse Day
Special Activities from 10:00 AM. – 4:00 PM.
Enjoy family oriented workshops, live entertainment, and special events. Children can participate in turn of the century activities. All special activities are included with regular admission. No advance reservations required.

Sept 11 (Tues)
9/11 Memorial Service
Special Activities from 8:30 AM. – 9:30 AM.
Memorial service for the victims of 9-11. The Lighthouse grounds and tower will be open to the public at no charge during this time.

Sept 15 (Sat)
Florida Lighthouse Day
Special Activities from 10:00 AM. – 2:00 PM.
Enjoy family oriented workshops, activities and demonstrations. Learn about Florida’s many lighthouses and enjoy live entertainment. All special events are included with regular admission, no advance reservations required.

Lighthouse Hours

2007 Summer Hours of Operation
July 1, 2007 – September 3, 2007
Open daily from 10:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. (last admission at 8:00)

September 4, 2007 – May 27, 2008
Open daily from 10:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. (last admission at 5:00)
Regional History

William H. Williams, Pioneer Keeper

William H. Williams was one of four sons sired by true Florida pioneers. Born in either Georgia or North Carolina near the turn of the eighteenth century, William Henry Williams journeyed to Florida with his parents, Samuel and Ana Maria Williams, and his uncle Wm. Williams, in 1803. Generous Spanish land grants made possible by the Royal Order of 1790 offered land in Florida to foreigners willing to swear allegiance to Spain and convert to Catholicism. Samuel and Wm. Williams soon established large plantations along the Halifax and Hillsborough (now Indian) Rivers.

Samuel Williams was granted 3,200 acres approximately ten miles north of Mosquito (now Ponce) Inlet in exchange for his oath of loyalty to Spain.

Stretching west from the river bank, this large plantation was located between Bay Street and Wilder Avenue in the heart of present-day Daytona Beach. Aided greatly by slave labor, Samuel Williams cleared vast tracts of virgin forest, used cut timber to construct a manor house, service buildings, and slave quarters, and cultivated a variety of crops including rice, cotton, and sugarcane. Goods and equipment were transported between the river and fields via a system of plantation roads, the longest of which connected Williams’ home on the west bank of the Halifax to his rice fields near present-day Campbell Middle School. This historic roadway, the city’s oldest thoroughfare, was renamed Loomis Avenue in honor of the son of Daytona’s founder, Matthias Day.

Fifteen miles south of the Orange Grove Plantation, Wm. Williams established his own estate on 2,200 acres situated between the Hillsborough River and Turnbull Creek. Although considered expansive by today’s standards, Williams felt that the land grant was insufficient for his needs. Hoping to rectify the situation, he petitioned the Spanish government for additional lands in 1804, claiming that he possessed too many slaves for only 2,000 acres. The Spanish approved his request and granted him an additional 2,020 acres on the St. Johns River which he named Spring Garden. Leaving three of his brother’s sons (including William H. Williams) to manage his New Smyrna estate, Wm. Williams dedicated himself to the cultivation of the new land grant which would later be renamed Deleon Springs.

Accustomed to the luxuries of today, it is difficult to imagine the hardships faced by most of the region’s early settlers. Dominated by mosquito infested swamps and dense forests, the Florida peninsula was a difficult environment in which to live. Hostile Native Americans, injury, and diseases such as cholera and yellow fever were sources of constant danger for the early pioneers and sent many to an early grave.

William, Abner, and William Henry Williams became the sole heirs of both the Spring Garden and New Smyrna plantations following the death of Wm. Williams in 1808. The brothers continued to manage the two estates for the next four years, dividing their time between the two locations until 1812 when ongoing regional conflict, Indian attacks, and the Patriots War forced them to leave Florida. Forced to abandon their plantation at New Smyrna and leave Spring Garden in the care of a half-blood Seminole named Burgess, the three brothers would not return to east central Florida for nearly a decade.

Samuel Williams died in 1813 shortly after the three brothers departed for Georgia. Although his will clearly identified his four sons as the rightful heirs to the Orange Grove Plantation, his widow quickly petitioned the Spanish government for control of her late husband’s estate despite existing Spanish laws that forbade women from owning property. With the aid of Joseph M. Hernandez, a prominent St. Augustine lawyer to whom she would later be married, Ana Maria Hill succeeded in securing her claim in 1817. Aided by Hernandez’s already considerable wealth, the Orange Grove Plantation underwent a period of intense improvement and was soon added to his list of valuable properties, making him one of the wealthiest and most influential land owners in the region.

Returning to the Halifax area following the United States’ acquisition of Florida in 1821, William H. Williams settled on a portion of the old New Smyrna plantation. Like many other land owners of that time, William may have accumulated a high debt as a result of the high cost associated with running a plantation. Although it is not known, this type of financial need may have forced William to sell his one third share of the Spring Garden Plantation to an associate from Georgia named Joseph Woodruff in 1823.

Continuing to manage his New Smyrna plantation, William H. Williams became active in local politics and fathered several children with his wife Fanny throughout the following decade. Dual appointments as a Justice of the Peace and Notary Public for Mosquito County between 1833 and 1835 made him one of the county’s first professional public servants, an occupation he would continue to pursue for many years.

Appointed Keeper of the Mosquito Inlet Lighthouse on March 10, 1885, William H. Williams sold his property in New Smyrna and moved both his family and servants to the small light station situated on the south side of Mosquito Inlet. Designed and built by Winslow Lewis, the poor quality of the lighthouse and surrounding buildings quickly became evident. Williams wrote his supervisor in St. Augustine on numerous occasions and their ongoing correspondence quickly generated a lengthy list of building flaws that brought the integrity of its chief designer into question. Williams was preparing to correct these discrepancies when a violent storm struck the inlet on October 21, 1835.

Serving on a grand jury in St. Augustine at the time, Williams soon learned of the storm’s impact on Mosquito Inlet. Upon returning, he found the light station in a state of near devastation. In a letter penned on November 4, 1885 to John Rodman, Superintendent of Lighthouses in St. Augustine, Williams wrote “I returned to Mosquito and found myself a beggar having lost everything in the house, my wife and children narrowly escaping with their lives. Where the house stood is now a beach, the tide flowing over the spot where it formally was. The Lighthouse is standing but in a very perilous way and it is more than probable that it will fall by the first high tide or N.E. wind.”

Homeless and fearful for his family’s safety due to growing tensions between
served as Commanding Officer of the Florida Territorial Militia during the Second Seminole War.

Located on the southwestern tip of Prince Edward Island in the Canadian Maritime Provinces, the West Point Lighthouse is one of the tallest in the region. Constructed in 1875, the West Point Lighthouse consists of a two-story keeper's dwelling and centrally placed windows in each facade. The square design of West Point Lighthouse, which came into vogue in the late 1860's, is generally associated with the changeover from colonial to federal control.

As the first lighthouse built by the federal government, West Point Light was lit on May 21, 1876, and remained a manned aid to navigation until 1963 when the last keeper retired. The Second Seminole War would continue until 1842, leaving much of the territory in shambles and crippling the region's agricultural industry for several decades. One unknown reporter wrote of the war, "the whole of the country south of St. Augustine had been laid to waste, not a building of any value was left standing and all has been burnt to the ground."

Although the tower's 2-story keeper's house was demolished in 1963 following the automation of its lantern, it has since been reconstructed based on the original 1875 plans. In addition to being an early example of a new Canadian lighthouse design, the station has several unusual features, including a rather formal entranceway, and centrally placed windows in each facade.

As peace and stability were once again restored, the question of statehood became a heated topic of debate. William H. Williams, always the public servant, was elected to represent Mosquito County in the Florida Legislative Council which had been tasked with writing the first Florida Constitution, a necessary step towards petitioning for statehood.

In the years that followed, William H. Williams continued his long tradition of public service and remained a Representative of Mosquito County until 1842 when he was voted out of office. Filing a claim for 40 acres along the Hillsborough River, Williams moved back to New Smyrna in 1843 and began all over again. With the help of slave labor, 40 acres of land were cleared for cultivation and a new home for his wife and 5 children erected. Elected as the first sheriff of the newly formed Orange County (which included the Halifax River area at the time) in 1845, William Henry Williams held this final public position less than 6 months before passing away only a stone's throw from his childhood home.

In the years that followed, William H. Williams continued his long tradition of public service and remained a Representative of Mosquito County until 1842 when he was voted out of office. Filing a claim for 40 acres along the Hillsborough River, Williams moved back to New Smyrna in 1843 and began all over again. With the help of slave labor, 40 acres of land were cleared for cultivation and a new home for his wife and 5 children erected. Elected as the first sheriff of the newly formed Orange County (which included the Halifax River area at the time) in 1845, William Henry Williams held this final public position less than 6 months before passing away only a stone's throw from his childhood home.

Although the tower's 2-story keeper's house was demolished in 1963 following the automation of its lantern, it has since been reconstructed based on the original 1875 plans. In addition to being an early example of a new Canadian lighthouse design, the station has several unusual features, including a rather formal entranceway, and centrally placed windows in each facade.

Of particular architectural interest are the first two floors of the tower, which are subdivided and plastered to create additional living space for the keepers. A dumbwaiter also exists that was once used for transporting oil to the lamp on the fourth floor. Running through the center of the tower, from the first story to the top, is a long shaft that once housed the weights which operated the clockwork mechanism for the rotating beacon.

In the years that followed, William H. Williams continued his long tradition of public service and remained a Representative of Mosquito County until 1842 when he was voted out of office. Filing a claim for 40 acres along the Hillsborough River, Williams moved back to New Smyrna in 1843 and began all over again. With the help of slave labor, 40 acres of land were cleared for cultivation and a new home for his wife and 5 children erected. Elected as the first sheriff of the newly formed Orange County (which included the Halifax River area at the time) in 1845, William Henry Williams held this final public position less than 6 months before passing away only a stone's throw from his childhood home.

Although the tower's 2-story keeper's house was demolished in 1963 following the automation of its lantern, it has since been reconstructed based on the original 1875 plans. In addition to being an early example of a new Canadian lighthouse design, the station has several unusual features, including a rather formal entranceway, and centrally placed windows in each facade.

Of particular architectural interest are the first two floors of the tower, which are subdivided and plastered to create additional living space for the keepers. A dumbwaiter also exists that was once used for transporting oil to the lamp on the fourth floor. Running through the center of the tower, from the first story to the top, is a long shaft that once housed the weights which operated the clockwork mechanism for the rotating beacon.

In the years that followed, William H. Williams continued his long tradition of public service and remained a Representative of Mosquito County until 1842 when he was voted out of office. Filing a claim for 40 acres along the Hillsborough River, Williams moved back to New Smyrna in 1843 and began all over again. With the help of slave labor, 40 acres of land were cleared for cultivation and a new home for his wife and 5 children erected. Elected as the first sheriff of the newly formed Orange County (which included the Halifax River area at the time) in 1845, William Henry Williams held this final public position less than 6 months before passing away only a stone's throw from his childhood home.

Although the tower's 2-story keeper's house was demolished in 1963 following the automation of its lantern, it has since been reconstructed based on the original 1875 plans. In addition to being an early example of a new Canadian lighthouse design, the station has several unusual features, including a rather formal entranceway, and centrally placed windows in each facade.

Of particular architectural interest are the first two floors of the tower, which are subdivided and plastered to create additional living space for the keepers. A dumbwaiter also exists that was once used for transporting oil to the lamp on the fourth floor. Running through the center of the tower, from the first story to the top, is a long shaft that once housed the weights which operated the clockwork mechanism for the rotating beacon.

As peace and stability were once again restored, the question of statehood became a heated topic of debate. William H. Williams, always the public servant, was elected to represent Mosquito County in the Florida Legislative Council which had been tasked with writing the first Florida Constitution, a necessary step towards petitioning for statehood.

In the years that followed, William H. Williams continued his long tradition of public service and remained a Representative of Mosquito County until 1842 when he was voted out of office. Filing a claim for 40 acres along the Hillsborough River, Williams moved back to New Smyrna in 1843 and began all over again. With the help of slave labor, 40 acres of land were cleared for cultivation and a new home for his wife and 5 children erected. Elected as the first sheriff of the newly formed Orange County (which included the Halifax River area at the time) in 1845, William Henry Williams held this final public position less than 6 months before passing away only a stone's throw from his childhood home.

Although the tower's 2-story keeper's house was demolished in 1963 following the automation of its lantern, it has since been reconstructed based on the original 1875 plans. In addition to being an early example of a new Canadian lighthouse design, the station has several unusual features, including a rather formal entranceway, and centrally placed windows in each facade.

Of particular architectural interest are the first two floors of the tower, which are subdivided and plastered to create additional living space for the keepers. A dumbwaiter also exists that was once used for transporting oil to the lamp on the fourth floor. Running through the center of the tower, from the first story to the top, is a long shaft that once housed the weights which operated the clockwork mechanism for the rotating beacon.

Restored in 1982, the station now offers overnight accommodations and includes a restaurant as well as a museum. It continues as an active aid to navigation managed by the West Point Development Corporation.
Archaeological investigations are ongoing at the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse. Almost every time we dig a hole or work underneath one of our historic buildings, artifacts are found. Sometimes, it’s as easy as looking in the undergrowth and finding an old bottle just lying on the surface. Over the past few years, we have found so many items that it seemed time to have a professional archaeological survey of the entire Light Station.

After interviewing three different consulting firms, we selected New South Associates, located in St. Augustine. Dr. Greg Smith, the Principal Investigator and Florida Branch Manager for New South, had already conducted a survey of the St. Augustine Light Station, and this experience made him the ideal choice for the job. Dr. Smith told us that even though a number of lighthouses have been recorded as archaeological sites during the process of listing sites on the National Register of Historic Places, most have not been the focus of archaeological testing or excavation. Our project would be fairly unique.

Our goals for undertaking this survey were many. A number of important documents concerning Light Station history are missing. The keeper’s logs from 1887-1898 were destroyed in a fire. A portion of the logs from 1907 are also missing, and the Coast Guard’s Light Station logs from 1945-1947 and 1949-1953 have yet to be located. There are very few documents, letters, stories, and diaries about the lives of the women and children who lived here. We hoped to unearth more information about daily life, including evidence of how everyone spent their time, what they ate, and what objects they used most often, what they carried in their pockets, what they wore, and how they worked and played.

We also hoped to discover more about how Light Station land was used. Were trash pits dug anywhere, or were they confined to a certain area? Was garbage burned or just buried? Were there remains of wells or drain fields or early electrical and plumbing lines? Could we find evidence of the temporary buildings that were constructed to house workers and supplies prior to the building of the Station? Would evidence of the tramway from the river to the tower, used to help move supplies to the construction site, be found? Would there be remains of the various radio antennas used in the Coast Guard years? Were certain areas of the property used more than others? Would it be possible to locate the graves of two men who were drowned with the Station’s chief engineer, Orville Babcock, in 1884?

Another area of interest for us was the possibility of uncovering evidence of prehistoric materials. Timucuan Indians lived in the Ponce Inlet area, and many shell mounds are nearby. We also wondered if evidence of Seminole activity could be found, as the early residents had written about frequent visits from Native Americans who would come to the Inlet to fish and hunt.

Our survey was conducted in February and March. The procedure was fairly straightforward. The property would be gridded using existing fences as a guide, and test holes would be dug approximately every 20 meters. The holes would be one meter deep and 50 cm in diameter. The earth removed would be screened for artifacts, food remnants, and other materials. Any discoveries would be sorted, categorized, recorded, and sent to a laboratory for analysis if necessary. Hidden features such as wells, trash pits, or other structures would be mapped, and we would begin to see a pattern of land use emerge.

On the first day of the project, Dr. Smith and his assistant, Toni Wallace, began by gridding the property and marking where the test holes would be dug. Test holes in and around the parking lot area were dug first, and we were on our way! Almost immediately it became obvious that much of the property had been disturbed. A few items such as brick fragments were unearthed. Moving

to the fence line of the nature trail, the archaeologists found a fragment of amber glass belonging to a bottle of “Dr. Glover’s Imperial Mange Medicine”, probably dating from the 1930s. Dr. Glover’s was used for dogs, but it could also be used as a shampoo for children.

Day two began with digging test holes inside the white picket fence that outlines the historic Light Station. A number of interesting discoveries were made. An area of densely packed coquina was unearthed along the south fence. This could possibly be remains of a tennis court constructed by the Ponce Inlet Women’s Club during the early 1970s. A kitchen drain pipe was located coming from the northeast corner of the Second Assistant Keeper’s dwelling, along with a gravel drain field for the septic tank associated with the 1921 bathroom addition. Water pipes were discovered on the south side of the Principal Keeper’s dwelling, possibly installed during 1921 when bathrooms and indoor plumbing were added to all the houses. An underground copper wire was discovered running east and west on the south side of the pump house.
The discovery of trash pits in the nature trail area came on day three. A large pit where trash had been burned was the first to be uncovered. It contained food remains, tin cans, paper and plaster fragments, portions of a boot, nails, egg shells, china fragments, burned animal bones, melted glass, and heat-warped bottles. A Mazda 50 watt light bulb in nearly perfect condition was found here. Mazda was a name used by GE on its finest bulbs, Ahura Mazda being the ancient Persian god of light. During World War II, the beacon’s lamp was dimmed from 500 watts to 50, and it is fun to imagine this bulb was once used in the Fresnel lens at the top of the tower. This was the only trash pit found during the survey in which items had been burned. Trash was simply buried in all the others.

It also soon became obvious that the property had been kept very clean by the early keepers. Trash pits were located primarily in what is now our nature trail area, although a few pits have been uncovered inside the white picket fence. Most of the items found in trash pits on the Station can be dated to 1930-1950. In the earliest years, trash may have been dropped into the river or buried outside the historic grounds.

One of the most exciting finds of the survey was unearthed on the fourth day. An underground brick “foundation” was discovered west of the tower near the walkway to the Lens Exhibit Building. This feature appeared to be about 10 feet square and one layer of carefully-laid bricks deep. It may have functioned as a staging area for bricks or as a pad for the hoist engine that was used during construction to lift materials to the top of the rising tower.

The next two days of digging brought the discovery of more trash pits in the nature trail area. These were filled with interesting items such as broken dishes, bottles, personal objects like combs and toothbrushes, dry cell batteries, electrical fixtures, tin cans, food remains, pieces of shoes and toys, men’s razors, rusted tools and hardware, paint cans, and a 6-foot long section of original gutter from one of the keepers’ dwellings. Once all the items were collected, the archaeologists spent several days sorting. Items were categorized, and some, like unidentifiable fragments of metal and glass, were marked for reburial. The others were cataloged and taken for cleaning, photographing, and further identification and analysis. A superficial look at what was
Laertes Life Preserver

During the early months of World War II, German submarines (U-boats) were very active along the Florida coast. These U-boats would lie in wait to torpedo both military ships and civilian cargo vessels. At first, Florida residents did not realize that lights on the shore provided the perfect backdrop to silhouette passing ships at night. The U-boats could easily pick off their targets until February, 1942, when the Navy ordered coastal blackouts in Florida.

On May 3, 1942, the Dutch freighter Laertes was torpedoed by a German sub, possibly U-564 or U-109, both active in Florida waters. The Laertes was on a voyage from New York to Bombay with a 5,230 ton cargo of war supplies including three aircraft, 17 tanks, and 20 trucks. She was sailing along the coast prior to entering a trans-Atlantic shipping lane. Eighteen crew members went down with the ship. This life preserver, now on display in our new World War II exhibit, washed ashore at Ponce Inlet. Today, the Laertes’ scattered wreckage sits in 72 feet of water, 11 miles off Port Canaveral.

Object of the Quarter

The blackouts helped to protect coastal shipping, but the U-boats continued their attacks for several years. From 1942 to 1943, 111 US ships were attacked offshore and in the Gulf of Mexico. Twenty-five ships were torpedoed between Key West and Daytona Beach.

Judging from the scarcity of clothing and footwear remains, these items were probably used, handed down, and used again. The majority of bottles and dishes found were broken, again suggesting that useful things were rarely discarded. The large number of paint cans in the trash pits confirms what the keepers recorded in their log books - painting was an almost daily activity, year in and year out. Dr. Smith’s inventory shows that the most common items found were metal fragments and broken glass bottles. One of his favorite finds, and one of the most unusual, was a tiny toy dinosaur or alligator crafted from a lead alloy.

It is interesting to note how clean the Station was kept. Most of the trash pits were located outside the picket fence. This may be typical of a military-style site that received regular quarterly inspections by the Lighthouse Service and, later, the Coast Guard.

Most of the unearthed objects date from fairly modern times. We do not yet know how or where the items from the Station’s earliest years were discarded. Much of the ground around the lighthouse has been disturbed, probably more than once. Also still waiting to be found are the remains of the temporary buildings and the graves of those who died during the construction of the Station. We have not yet unearthed any prehistoric artifacts or features, although these are commonly found in the surrounding area. With the ongoing help of Dr. Greg Smith, we plan to continue our investigations in order to interpret, as completely as possible, the story of this historic site.
We would very much like to express our appreciation to radio room volunteer and historic interpreter Allen Bestwick. Allen is responsible for the creation and management of our ham radio station. Our appreciation also goes to our two radio room volunteers, Paul Milward and George Kangas. They kept the station operating under less than ideal conditions during the opening reception for World War II at the Lighthouse. This is the first time, since 1953, that the Light Station has officially communicated from its own radio station. Gene Greneker, who volunteered many hours in the development of the radio beacon exhibit, visited us the week before the opening. Thanks for your help and your donation of the teletype equipment.

Our thanks also go to Terry Pitcher and Bruce Zarajczyk for donating artifacts, and to John Lane for his help with materials from the Commodore wreck site. Ray Chalke donated vintage tools, a camera, and other early 20th century items. Gerry Harris donated a Coast Guard manual from the 1950s, and Robert Ash gave a 1950s telephone. Once again, Julie Davis has provided us with a number of items direct from the riverbank, including an intact Johnson Brothers dinner plate. Thank you all!

The museum is always grateful to receive artifact donations for the collection. Antique lighthouse items, clothing, shoes, hats, and toys are currently being sought. US Lighthouse Service uniform items, insignia, buttons, hats, and badges are needed, along with Coast Guard items from 1937-1953. Objects, personal items, clothing, documents, and photographs from the early years of Ponce Park are also welcome. Please call Ellen Henry at 386-761-1821 for more information about our collecting needs.

The following awards were presented by Program Manager, Bob Callister:

- **50-100+ Hours of Service**: Dorothy Beard, Haley Blass, Rebecca Callister, Hal Cokash, Mariann Elkonowitz, Edson Graham, Theresa Helfrey, Helen Magale, Jackie Mann, Jan Reece, Al Sepa, and Art & Tana White.
- **200 Hours of Service**: Budd Solano (201 hrs)
- **250+ Hours of Service**: John Mann (250 hrs), Tommy Campbell (273 hrs), Gerry Harris (295 hrs), and Art Hahn (351 hrs).
- **500 Hours of Service**: Allen Bestwick was honored for his contribution of over 500 hours of volunteer service. Allen became a volunteer in 2004, but has spent several hundred hours in the past year helping with the new Radio Room Exhibit, finding artifacts, recruiting ham radio operators, and working on educational activities. Thank you Allen!

We also honored three volunteers with Lifetime Volunteer Awards. They have been active in the preservation and restoration of the Lighthouse for years, and certainly deserve special recognition.

Tony Girolami has been involved with the Lighthouse since he retired to Ponce Inlet from Chicago in 1986. He has been a member of the Board of Trustees since 1996 and is our most active volunteer with over 800 hours of service each year. Earl Davis has been particularly active at the Lighthouse since he retired from Florida Power & Light in the early 1980s. He’s been a member of the Board of Trustees since 1984 and was elected Treasurer in 1985. He has been a tireless volunteer at the Lighthouse for over 30 years. Gladys Davis was the last baby born on Light Station grounds. Her father was Edward Meyer who served as the First Assistant Keeper, last civilian Principal Keeper, and first Coast Guard Keeper at the Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station. Chief Meyer settled in Ponce Inlet with his family following his retirement from the Coast Guard. When the Federal Government awarded the Lighthouse property to the town of Ponce Inlet in 1972, Gladys was one of the original signers of the Articles of Incorporation. She was elected to the first temporary Board of Directors in 1972 and the first permanent Board in 1973. If it were not for the untiring efforts of Gladys and the other members of the original Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse Preservation Association this historic landmark may have been lost years ago.

We gladly welcome anyone interested in becoming a valuable member of our volunteer force. Please visit us online at www.ponceinlet.org for more information about our volunteerism at the Lighthouse. If you would like to join this special group of volunteers, please call Bob Callister, at (386)761-1821 or by email at bobcallister@ponceinlet.org for more information.
Although the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse has hosted over 16 school groups during the past quarter, Homeschool Day, held on March 14, 2007 was our biggest educational event so far this year. Hosted in partnership with the Marine Science Center, Homeschool Day is scheduled twice a year and has quickly become a very popular and anticipated event within the homeschool community, drawing parents and students from as far away as the Gulf Coast and Florida panhandle. Special events offered during this special day included a wide variety of student workshops including compass reading, how to use a quadrant, knots per hour, and navigational markers. Many of the parents who stopped to talk with us throughout the day praised the event as one of “the best Homeschool event (we) ever attended”. We thank the staff and volunteers who made this event so successful, and look forward to our next Homeschool Day on November 8th.

Education News

Students and parents alike enjoy using a quadrant to determine their latitude.

Homeschool students take the USLHE Beacon for a spin around the Light Station under the close supervision of their Volunteer Captain.

Students and parents alike enjoy using a quadrant to determine their latitude.

ACROSS

4 A layer of this densely packed material may indicate that tennis was once played at the lighthouse.
7 Former lighthouse keeper William H. Williams was the first to hold this position in Orange County.
10 A buried brick pad may have held this heavy lifter.
11 Early inhabitants of the Ponce Inlet area.
12 Native American attacks near this historic city signaled the beginning of the 2nd Seminole War.
13 Conveyance used to transport supplies from the river to the Light Station’s construction site.
17 An invisible navigation signal transmitted from 1940 to the early 1950s.
18 Namesake of the beacon’s WWII light.
19 Accused of shoddy lighthouse construction.
20 Large farms that once thrived along the Halifax and Indian Rivers.
21 Preyed on Allied shipping during World War II.
22 Study that provides insight into the light station’s historic past.

DOWN

1 William H. Williams was a Lieutenant in this militia unit made up of county residents.
2 Took 18 souls to a watery grave in 1942.
3 Home to July’s Lighthouse of the Quarter.
5 Downtown Daytona Beach is located on the site of this former plantation.
6 First keeper at Mosquito Inlet
8 First lighthouse built by the Federal Department of Marine.
9 Rumored to have accessorized himself with a lantern reflector during the Battle of Dunlawton.
14 Enforced along the coast to combat German attacks on shipping during World War II.
15 Commanding officer of the Mosquito Roarers, first Congressional Representative from Florida, and step-father of William H. Williams.
16 An artifact rich site
JOIN THE PONCE DE LEON INLET LIGHTHOUSE PRESERVATION ASSOCIATION

A GENERAL ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP INCLUDES:
• Free admission to the museum and lighthouse during regular hours of operation
• 10 percent discount in the museum gift shop and online store
• One subscription to The Light Station quarterly newsletter
• Invitations to special events
• Volunteer opportunities

MEMBERSHIP CATEGORIES:

General ............................................ $20
• The benefits listed above for one individual

Senior ............................................. $10
• All privileges of General Membership for one individual 62 years or older

Student ........................................... $10
• All privileges of General Membership for one individual 12 years or older with a valid student identification

Family ............................................. $40
• All privileges of General Membership for the immediate family
• Immediate family is limited to one or two adults and your children under age 18. Grandchildren are not eligible.
• You will be issued one membership card for each parent, and each card will list the names of your children.
• Child under 12 must be accompanied by an adult

2nd Assistant Keeper ......................... $100
• All privileges of General or Family Membership
• Recognition of your membership in the newsletters’ New Keepers List

1st Assistant Keeper ......................... $200
• All privileges of 2nd Assistant Membership
• Two gift General Memberships

Principal Keeper ............................. $500
• All privileges of 1st Assistant Membership
• Personal guided tour of the Light Station
• Exhibit sponsorship recognition

Corporate Lampist .......................... $500
• All privileges of General or Family Membership for up to five company principals
• Use of the Light Station’s conference room for one meeting with up to twenty attendees. This meeting will include a personal guided tour of the Light Station.
• Recognition of your company’s support in the newsletters’ New Corporate Lampist List
• Exhibit sponsorship recognition

Please complete the entire form to enroll, or join online at www.poncelighthousestore.org.

Select type of membership:

- General ............................................ $20
- Senior ............................................. $10
- Student (submit copy of ID) .................. $10
- Family ............................................. $40
- Gift Membership ..............................
- Renewal
- 2nd Assistant Keeper ......................... $100
- 1st Assistant Keeper ......................... $200
- Principal Keeper ............................. $500
- Corporate Lampist .......................... $500

Name:

Address 1:

Address 2:

City: State: ZIP:

Phone: ( ) –

Email:

Office use only

Begins__ Ends_

For a family membership, you may list an additional adult and the names of all children:

Adult:

Children:

(List any additional names on a separate sheet.)

We will contact 1st Assistant Keeper, Principal Keeper or Corporate Lampist members to obtain gift membership and company principal information.

Membership enclosed: $

Donation enclosed: $

Total enclosed: $

Please charge my: (check one)

- Visa
- MasterCard

CC#: Exp. Date:

Signature:

Or, make check payable to:
Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse Preservation Association, Inc.
4931 S. Peninsula Dr., Ponce Inlet, FL 32127

Thank You for Your Generous Support!
Gift Shop

Embroidered Tank Top with a nautical design. Available in Black, Pink and Ash.
Price: $16.99. Item #9499 (Note size and color when ordering.)

Unisex Captain’s Hat. Available in 2 sizes.

Silver Tone Anchor Pendant Necklace with Matching Earrings
Price: $16.95 set Item #8186

4 ½” Wood box with inlaid brass anchor houses a brass and leather telescope that extends to 6 ½”. A perfect gift for anyone that loves the sea.
Price: $22.99. Item #2426

“Harbour Lights” collectible Yorktown Lightship Lens with illuminated base. Runs on 2 AA batteries or AC adapter. Measures 7” x 5”. Limited edition of 4,000.
Price: $150.00. Item #762

Stay the course with this working gimbaled compass featuring a beautiful old world style compass rose set in a polished brass housing. Stands 4 ½” tall.
Price: $15.99. Item #3333

“Harbour Lights” collectible Ponce Inlet Light Station. Molded resin statue measuring 6” x 6”.
Price: $16.00. Item #3963

By Anheuser-Busch. The 3rd addition to the Lighthouse Stein Series. This beautiful ceramic stein commemorates the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse. These limited edition steins stand 4 ½ inches tall and are individually numbered. Only 10,000 made. A must gift for any Lighthouse or Stein collector.
Price: $450.00. Item #762

“Harbour Lights” collectible Ponce Inlet Lighthouse. One of our most popular miniatures of the historic Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station. Measures 6” x 6”.
Price: $150.00. Item #762

Entertain the whole family with the unique adaptation of an old favorite. Uses images of some of the nation’s most beautiful lighthouses instead of letters and numbers.
Price: $13.50. Item #3330

4 ½” Wood box with inlaid brass anchor houses a brass and leather telescope that extends to 6 ½”. A perfect gift for anyone that loves the sea.
Price: $22.99. Item #2426

“Harbour Lights” collectible Yorktown Lightship Lens with illuminated base. Runs on 2 AA batteries or AC adapter. Measures 7” x 5”. Limited edition of 4,000.
Price: $150.00. Item #762

Embroidered Tank Top with a nautical design. Available in Black, Pink and Ash.
Price: $16.99. Item #9499 (Note size and color when ordering.)

Unisex Captain’s Hat. Available in 2 sizes.

Silver Tone Anchor Pendant Necklace with Matching Earrings
Price: $16.95 set Item #8186

Stay the course with this working gimbaled compass featuring a beautiful old world style compass rose set in a polished brass housing. Stands 4 ½” tall.
Price: $15.99. Item #3333

“Harbour Lights” collectible Ponce Inlet Light Station. Molded resin statue measuring 6” x 6”.
Price: $16.00. Item #3963

By Anheuser-Busch. The 3rd addition to the Lighthouse Stein Series. This beautiful ceramic stein commemorates the Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse. These limited edition steins stand 4 ½ inches tall and are individually numbered. Only 10,000 made. A must gift for any Lighthouse or Stein collector.
Price: $450.00. Item #762

“Harbour Lights” collectible Ponce Inlet Lighthouse. One of our most popular miniatures of the historic Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station. Measures 6” x 6”.
Price: $150.00. Item #762

“Harbour Lights” collectible Ponce Inlet Lighthouse. One of our most popular miniatures of the historic Ponce de Leon Inlet Light Station. Molded resin statue measuring 6” x 6”.
Price: $16.00. Item #3963

Entertain the whole family with the unique adaptation of an old favorite. Uses images of some of the nation’s most beautiful lighthouses instead of letters and numbers.
Price: $13.50. Item #3330

4 ½” Wood box with inlaid brass anchor houses a brass and leather telescope that extends to 6 ½”. A perfect gift for anyone that loves the sea.
Price: $22.99. Item #2426

The Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse Gift Shop specializes in unique lighthouse and nautical themed gifts for people of all ages. Our wide selection includes clothing, housewares, toys, and collectibles including a wide selection of Harbour Lights and other miniatures. Customers may also shop online at www.PonceLighthouseStore.org, and place orders by phone at (386) 761-1821 ext. 21.

Please contact the Gift Shop at (386) 761-1821 or via email at connie@ponceinlet.org for more information. Usual UPS shipping charges and a $4.00 handling fee apply to all orders.

Ponce Inlet Lighthouse Tapestry Wall Hanging. Measures 26x36”. Made in USA.
Price $44.99. Item #840

The Ponce de Leon Inlet Lighthouse Gift Shop specializes in unique lighthouse and nautical themed gifts for people of all ages. Our wide selection includes clothing, housewares, toys, and collectibles including a wide selection of Harbour Lights and other miniatures. Customers may also shop online at www.PonceLighthouseStore.org, and place orders by phone at (386) 761-1821 ext. 21.

Please contact the Gift Shop at (386) 761-1821 or via email at connie@ponceinlet.org for more information. Usual UPS shipping charges and a $4.00 handling fee apply to all orders.

Non-Profit Organization
U.S. Postage Paid
Daytona Beach, FL
Permit 400